
SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YOHK 
COUNTY OF NEW YOKK 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

ANDREW LANEW, TONY FTORITO, JOHN 
FUNJCIELLO, CHRISTINE WOJCJK, 
ALAN DOYLE, CHARLES SANGSTER, 
JOHN SHANNON, PAULA DECKMAN, 
CENTRAL NEW YORK ASSOCIATES, LLC, 
ATRIUM ASSOCIAI'ES, LLC, 224 I-IAHRISON 
ASSOCIATES, LLC, ARMORY ASSOCIATES, LLC, 
65-35 QUEENS ASSOCIATI<S, LLC, 460 NORTH 
FRANKLIN STREET ASSOCIATES, LLC, 1401 EKJE 

RWT'I'ONFJELD ASSOCIATES, l,LC, SOUNDVIEW 
REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, LAREW, DOYLE & 

ROUIdEVAKD ISAST, LLC, VINEGAR JIIIdL, LLC, 

ASSOCIATES, LldC, 

PI ain ti ff des i gnatcs 
New York County as 1 1 10 8 2 27 
the place oftrial. 
'Thc basis of' venue 
is De fendan t( s ) 
placc(s) nl' resiclcnce 

*"*SUMMONS*"* 

The place of 
residcricc of  one or 
inore Defendants is in 
New York County 

YOU ARE HI+:RUBY SUMMON11D to answer thc complaint it1 this action and to serve a 
copy o f  your answer, or, if the complaint i s  1101 served with this summons, to serve notice of- 
appearance, on the plaintil'rs' Attorneys within 20 days aftcr the service of this silnmo11s, 

exclusive ofthe day of service (or within 30 days after thc service is coinpletc irthis siirn~noiis is 
not pcrsonally dcliverccl to y o ~ i  within the Slate of New York); and i n  case of your failure to 
appt'ar o r  mswer, judgmcnt will bc taien against yoii by dcfhult Tor the relief demanded hercin. 

Dated: New York, New York 
July I 1 ,  201 I 

--- Defendants Addresses i'or Scrvics: 
ANDREW 1,AREW 
245 1:. 40th S1. 
New York, N Y  10016-1730 

FREE TH & C'l,AY,YLP 
Attorneys fo r I-' I ai nt i ff 
Finpire State Building 
350 Firth Avc., 77Ih Fl- 
New York, N Y  
(9 17) 543-2024 

"*yk+" I 

Lj: 1 r\iq i ,*' f 
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Ilefendants Addresscs for Service (cont i iiucd): 
‘1’ONY FIORTTO 
‘I‘hc Atrium 
2 Clinton Sq., Suite 120 
Syl-acusc, N Y  13202 

JOHN FIJNIC‘IELLO 
2998 Heunn St. 
L3aldwinsville, NY I3027 

CHRTSTINR WOJCIK 
245 E. 40th St. 
Ncw York, NY 100 16-1 730 

AI,AN DOYLE 
One Richmond Square 
Providencc, K l  02906 

( ’ I  IAKJ,ES SANGS’I’EK 
5612 Muscovy La. 
Manlius, NY 13 104 

JOHN SI IANNON 
I I2 Farrier Avc. # 3 14 
Oncida, NY 13421 - 1 600 

PAT 1 [,A DECKMAN 
‘l’he Foundry 
432 North Franklin St., Suitc 60 
Syracusc, NY 13204 

C‘EN‘I’KAI, NEW YORK AYSOC’IA‘TES, TJ,C 
Partnership Propertics 
c/o Anthony Fiorito 
2 Clinton Square 
Syracuse, New York, 13202 

ATRIIJM ASSOCIATES, LLC 
‘I’wo Clinton Square, Suitc 120 
Syracusc, NY 13202 

224 I IAKKISON ASSOCIA‘I’KS, I.J,C 
2 Clinton Squarc / Suite 120 
Syracusc, New York, I3202 
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Lkfciidants Addrcsses for Service (continued): 
ARMORY ASSOCIATES, LLC 
c/o Martin CaliilI I m c y  & C'ahill ConsLilting Services, l,J,C 
South 1:ranklin St. 
Syracuse, NY, 13202 

65-35 QIJEENS ASSOCIATES, LI,C 
c/o Aiidrew Lxcw 
The Atrium 
2 Clinton Square, Suite 120 
Syracwe, New York, 13202 

460 NORTH FRANK1 .IN S'I'REET ASSOCIAIF'S, l , l X  
The Atrium 
2 C'linton Square Suile 120 
Syracusc, Ncw York, 13202 

1401 ERIE BOULIIVAKI) b:AST, LLC 
c/o Partncrship Properties Inc 
The Atrium 
2 Clinton Sq. 
Ste 120 
Syracusc, New York, 13202 

VINEGAR HILL, LLC' 
Two Clinton Square, Suite 316 
Syracuse, NY 13202 

I3RI'I"I'ON FIE1,D ASSOCIATES, I .I L' 
Two Clinton Square, Suile 120 
Syracuse, N Y  13202 

SOUNI)VIRW REAL ESTAI'E PAJI'I'NERS 
Corporation Scrvicc Company 
50 Wcston Strcet, Hartl'ord, CT, 061 20- 1537 

I,AREW, DOYLE & ASSOCIATES, l,I,C 
245 E. 40'I'Ii Slreel 
unit 61' 
Ncw York, New York, 1001 6 
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SUPREME C 0 1 J I i ' C  OF THE STATE OF NEW YOliK 
COUNTY OF NEW YOliK 

RE 13EC C A .LAREW, 

Plaint iff, VEIUFLEI) 
COMPLAINT 

V. 

Index No.: 
ANDREW LAIWW, TONY FIOKITO, JOHN 

CHARLES SANGSTER, JOHN SHANNON, PAULA 
DECKMAN, CENTRAL NEW YORK ASSOCIATES, LLC, 
ATRIUM ASSOCIATES, LLC, 224 HAKRISON 
ASSOCIATES, LLC, ARMORY ASSOCIATES, LLC, 

STREET ASSOCIATES, LLC, 1401 ERIE BOULEVARII 
EAST, LLC, VINEGAR HILL, LLC, BRITTONFI ELD 
ASSOCIATES, LLC, SOUNDVIEW REAT, ESTATE 

FUNICIELLO, CHRISTINE WOJCIK, ALAN DOYLE, 

65-35 QUElqNS ASSOCIATES, LLC, 46U NORTH FKANKLTN 

PARTNERS, LAREW, DOYLE & ASSOCIATES, LLC, 

Date Filed: 

1 ~ In an effort to thwart the lcgal and eidbrccablc orders of duly appoiiitedjudges of 

the Connecticut Superior C'ourt, tlic Del'endants have acted in conccrt lo hide assets and interests 

belonging Lo the Llcfcndant Andrew Lnrcw. In addition to various coninion law and statutory 

violations, the L)efcndants acts constitute violations of Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt 

Organizations Act, 18 [J.S.C. 6 1961, ct scq., ("Civil KIC'O"). 

2. The Dcfcndants wronglul acts include, but arc not Iirr-Liled to, wire und mail fraud, 

prcscnhtion of falsc testimony in Court, presentation of f-allse documcnts, bank fmud, lax rraud, 

arid conversion. 

3. The Dei'endanls have, in esscncc, acted in ccmccrt as a criminal organization to 

perpetuate niiinerous frauds in order to continually deprivc thc Plaintiff, and her three children, of 

I 
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imoney awarded by a Court of one of the States or‘ thc lJnited States. As a result of such acts, the 

I’hintifr‘ ir now destitute. I ler home has been Ibrccloscd upon, and she has bccn compelled to  expcnd 

in cxccss of $500,000 in legal fees in the divorce inattcr alone trying to unravel the complex 

fraudu Icn t schcnic described herein. 

4. Defendant I a c w ,  in  effect the “godhthcr” of the RICO organi/ation, has relied on 

the varioiis other Defendants -- li-iends, busincss associates, corporate entities, accountants, and other 

professionals -- to er‘fectuatc this scheme to hidc his assets and tinancial intcrests from his ex-wife. 

Defkndmt Larcw’s interest in such assets arc worth approxiniatcly $ 1  2,000,000. Duly entered 

court orders providc that Def’endant I n c w  is obligated to pay, inter diu, a portion of‘ the incotnc 

gcnerated by such asscts to the Plaintif’f. Dcfcndant Larew has tlagrantly and intentionidly failed 

to do so. 

5.  ‘I‘hc De[endcmts havc further used f h d s  that have been awarded to the Plaintiff 

by Judges o P  the Connccticut Superior Court, and have used those funds to invest in more and 

more busincss dealings which resultcd i n  additional profits to thc Dekndants (“ill gollen gains”). 

6. While l)ef‘endant Lxzrew’s interest was clearly to keep nioney from his ex-wil‘e, 

and thus morc for hirnsell: the other individual Defendants motivation is also clear -- to protcct 

their linancial intcrests by niaking surc their successful busincss pastner/cIicnt reniains active, 

prcrductivc arid well conipensatcd so that he stays intcrestcd. 

THE PARTJFS 

7. ‘I’hc Plaintiff, Rebecca I,arcw, is a resident ol’ Southport, Connecticut. She is a 

divorced stay-at-homc mothcr. I ler three minor children are issue or‘ hcr marriage to Ilcfcndant 

Andrew Larcw. 

8. Defendan1 Andrcw Larew (b‘tkfcndant Larew”) is a resident of New York, NY. Ilc 
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was married to the PlaiiitifT from 1992 until 2006. IIc is a successful real estate developer with 

interests throughout Ncw York  State. His last known rcsidential address is 245 E. 40th St., New 

York,NY 10016-1730. 

9. Dcfeiidant Tony Fiorito (“Defendant Fiorito”) is a longtime friend, and close 

business associate, uf‘ Def’endant I,arcw. I Iis principal place of business is al The hl r ium,  2 

Clinton Sq., Suite 120, Syracuse, NY 13202. 

1 0. Defendnnt John Funiciello (“Defendant Funiciello”) is a longtime friend, and 

close business associatc, of Ilefendant Larew. His last known residencc is 2098 1 Icuiia St., 

Baldwinsville, N Y  13027. 

1 I .  Defendant Christine Wojcik (“I~cfcndant Wojcik”) is Ilefendanl Larew’s current 

wifc. TTer last known rcsiciciicc is 245 IL 40th St., Ncw Ynrk, NY 100 16-1 730. 

12. Defendant Alan Doyle (“Ddendant Doyle”) is a longtimc fricnci, and close 

busiiicss associatc, of Dcfeiidant T,arew. His business address is Onc Iiichnivnd Square, 

I-’rovidencc, It1 02906. 

13. Dcfcndant Cliarles Sarigster is a busiiicss partiicr with 1)cfendant Larew. His last 

known rcsidencc is 56 I2 Muscovy La., Marilius, NY 13 104. 

14. Tlcfcndant John Shannon is an accountant for Defendant Imew. His last know 

place of business was 1 12 Farricr Avc. # -3 14, Oncida, N Y 1 342 1-1 600. 

15. Defendant Paula Deckman is or was Del‘endant Larew’s accountant. She is a 

partner i n  thc accounting firm Testone, Marshall & Dicenm, CPAs in Syracusc, NY. Ifer 

principal place of. business is locatcd at ‘I’he Foundry 432 North Franklin St., Suite 60, Syracuse, 

N Y  13204. 

I O .  Def‘endant Chitrat New York Associates, J,J,C (“Ikrendant CNY”) is a New 

York limitcci liability company establishcd in o r  about Scptcmbcr 27, 2006. Its principal place of 
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business is ‘I’wo Clinton Square, Syracusc, New York, 13202. 

1 7. rlekndant Alrium Associales, LLC (“DelPndant Atrium”) is a New York limited 

liability conipmy, establislied in o r  about November 17, 1999. Its principal placc of business is 

‘I’wo Clinton Square, Suite 120, Syracuse, NY 13202. 

1 8. Defendant 224 Harrison Associates I , I  ,C (“Defendant I larrison”) is a New York 

limited liability company cstablislied in o r  about Ianuary 14, 1999 with a principal place of 

business Two Clinton Square, Suite 120, Syracuse, NY 13202. 

19. Defendant Armory Associatcs T,T,C (“Defendant Armory Square”) is a Ncw York 

limited liability company establislicd in o r  about February 0, 2006 with a principal place of‘ 

business of 309 Youth Franklin Street, Syracuse, NY 13202. 

20. Defendant 65-35 Queens Associatcs, J.,f .C (“Del‘endanl Queens Associates”) is a 

New York limited liability company cstablishcd in or about June 2, 2008, with a principal place 

of business Two Clinton Square, Suite 120, Syracuse, N Y  13202. 

2 1 . 1)cfendant 460 North Franklin Street Associates, I,I,C (“Del‘endant Franklin 

Strcct”) is a New York limited liability company establislicd in or about Decciiibcr 22, 2009, 

with a principal place of business ‘I’wo Clinton Square, Suitc 120, Syracuse, NY 13202. 

22. Defendant I401 Erie Boulevard East LLC (“Ilcfcndant Eric R o ~ l c v a r d ~ ~ )  is a New 

York limited liability company established in or  about .luly 30, 2007. Jkfcndant I’rie 

Boulevard’s principal place of business is ‘rwo Clinton Square, Silite 120, Syi+ac~ise, NY 13202. 

23. Ikfcndant Vinegar I l i l l  T,T,C (“Delkndant Vinegar ll i l l”)  is a New York liiiiitcd 

liability company established in or about June 28, 2004, with a principal place 01’ business Two 

Clinton Squarc, Suitc 3 16, Syracusc, NY 13202. 

24. Defendant Rrittonlield Associates I,LC ("Defendant f3rittonfield”) is a New York 
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liini tcd liability company established in or about July 29, 2008, with a principal place o f  business 

‘I’wo Clinton Square, Suile 120, Syracuse, N Y  13202. 

25. 13cfcndaiit Snundvicw IZcal bstatc I’ar-tners, LLL’ is ;i 1)elaware limited liabilily 

company with its principal place of 1xisiincss at (>tic Stamforci Forum, 20 I I resser Hlvci., 9‘’’ 

Floor, Stamford, C“1’ 0000 1. Its agent for service is C‘orporation Service Company, SO Westori 

Strcct, I lat-tford, c‘ I , Oh 120- 1537. 

20. Dei‘endanl Larew, Iloyle 22 Associates, I , I  ,c‘ (”1)cfcndant I x c w  Ihylc  

Associates”) is a New York liinitcd liability conipany est;iblislied in or about January 11. 201 1 .  11 

is owned by Ilcfcridatlts I a c w  and Doyle. It is a “real estate invcstmcnt bailking firm.” Its 

principal placc of busiricss i s  27 Whilehall St., 4th I- loor, New Yorh, N Y  10004. Its address for 

service i s  245 E. 40th Strcct, I Jiiit 613, New Yorh, NY, 100 Ih.  

FACTS 

27. In 1 902. the Plaintiff, then known ii\ Rebecca Ilowcrs, married Defendan1 Larew. 

‘I’lic Plaintiff bore one child during Iicr mariage to Defendant I ,arew. 

28. In 1099, Dcfcndant 1 ,arew i l l i d  two partncrs purcliasecl two buildings in Syracuse 

NY -- llie Alriiirii arid 1 larrisoii Iluildings. 

29. 13cfcndnnt Larew’s par-tncrs in tlic p~rrcliase 01‘ the Atrium and 1 Iarrison Buildings 

wcrc Ilcfciidarits l3orito and l- unicicllo. Each oi‘ tlicsc thrcc L)eikndants held, atid upon 

inhrmalion and bclicf still hold, one-third ( I /?) cquily intercst in each I , I  ,V. 

30. The Atrium Huilcling has, a t  all rclevant times been, the primary asset oL 

1)cfcndant Atriiin1 Associates. It is located 111 Two Clinton Square ;ti Syracuse, New York ,md its 

estimated valric in 2008 was $ IS,000,000. I Jpon inii)rmatioa arid heliel: Defetldalit Larew’s 

cstimatccd iict interest in Atrium Associates was, al all rclcvaiit times, nearly $3,000,000. 
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3 1 . The Harrison Huilditig is owned by 1)efknciant I larrisori, sild iipon iiilimiiation 

and hclicf has, at all relevant times, been its primary asset. Tlic I lairison L3~1ilding is a 24,800 

square foot oft'icc building located at 224 I Iarriscm Street in Syracuse. I tic valw of the Harrison 

Building is in  the range of $9,000,000. I Jpon inlormation and hclief: Defendant Larcw's net 

interest in Deikndiint 1-larrison was, at all relevant times, nearly ~2,000,000. 

32. Bolh llie Atrium nud IIarrison buildings arc located in an L'eI1ipowcrineiit ~oiie'. of' 

thc City o r  Syracuse, atid thus generate combincd aiin~ial Q k L h  l+edcral tau  reiitnds totsling 

approximately $SS,OOO.OO to 1)efindalit I .arcw, and his partners. 

31. J t i  2003, tlic Plaintiff filcd f'or divorce from 1)ef'endsnt I a r e w  d~le  to a11 

irreconcilablc breakdown of the marriage. 'I hey separatcd at ihat tiiiic. 

-34. Parties to a clivorcc action are requircd to pr-oviclc trutliliil inlimiiation regarding 

their iinmc i al si t I I; i t  i on ~ i iico rii e,  a sst' I s a ti d I i ahi 1 i I i e s . 

1s. 011 Iiuiiicroiis occasion\ during tlic pendency or the divorcc proceedings, 

Defendant I x c w  made tiutiicroiis ililsc representations ;is to his f71iaiicial interests, income and 

asscts -- in fiirtlicrancc of his fraud upon the C'ourt and against the Plaintiff atid her chi Id. 

36. On certain instances during the clivorcc pr-oceedingx, Deliidant I ,ar*ew callcd 

upon the other individual 1)cfci~Iants to provide flilsc inli)rmation arid/or. flilsc testimony i n  

liirtherancc of the liaud, which 11icy did. 

17. I n  2004, in conncction with tlic divorce, thc Plainliff signed ;I stipulation with 

Del'endant Larew whcreby tlic Piairitill' would receive approximalcly $1 8.500.00 per month 

support lrom Ikfcndant I .nrcw. 1 his stipdation was based upon Dei'endant I jiirew's xtatcd 

annual income being in CYCCW $7S0,000.00 :iccordiiig to his I KS 1040 tax form\. 

38. I n  o r  :ihout Apri I 3004, Delkndant Liirew, together with lkfendants 1:iori to aiid 
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I:utiicicllo, a s  well ;is ;I new partner, Edward Rogers, purchased property fbr a “Border Patrol 

Facility” Oswego, NY.  I’his propcrty was not 1 istcd on any linnncial aflklavits subinittcd by 

Defendant I ,arcw which wcrc signed ~iiider the penalty or pci:jury during tlic divorce. Defkiidanls 

Larew, Fiorito arid I;unicicllo actively concealed this Iransiiction, or iigrecd to conceal said 

transaction in 1urfhcr:iricc of tlic fraud. 

39. The properly in Oswego, N Y  wm at all relevant times held by Dcfcndant Vincgar 

Hill. Ownership of T)elkndanl Vinegar Hill was divided as li)llows: Delkndant Fiorito owned 

5094, biiniciello owncd 25%, and liogcrs owncd 25% 1)cfcndmts I ,arcw, Fiorito and t;unicicllo 

actively concealed h i s  information, or agrccd to coticcal said iiifcmiation in furthernncc of the 

fraud. 

40. I n  or aboiil April I ~ 2005, 1)cfcnciant I,arcw set ~ i p  a transaction whereby he 

appcarcd to be clivcslcd of his partnership interest in 1)cfctidant Atrium. ‘I’hc transaction 

supposedly w m  h a [  he was “tcrminatcd” from the partnership due to his “inability to pay capital 

calls.” As part of that tcrminatiou Defendant Larew MIS paid $75,000  IUS $ X , S O O  per qLtarter fbr 

his 33% share. ‘I’his was clearly donc in anticipation of an award to the Plainlifl‘ in thc divorce, 

aiid as such was a lYii[~d. Deliridants I .arcw, I:iorito a i d  Fiiniciello actively concealed tlic true 

nature 01‘ this lransaclion, o r  agrccd to  ccmxal the same in hrlhcrancc of thc fraud. 

4 I .  .lune 21 through June 34, and .luly 20“’, 2005, a trial in the divorce of. lhe Plaintiff 

from L)efeadant Larew was held in tlic C‘onncctiwt Superior C’oiirt 1i)r the Judicial 1)istrict ol‘ 

1:airfield before Judge Holly Abcry- Wctstonc. 

42. In B Mcmorandiim of. Decision dated Novctriber 8, 2005, J~idge Ahery- Wctstonc 

ordered the marriage dissolved, and bascd on the inforinat ion provided by Defendant 1 x c w ,  

including ail cstixuated “base” incomc of S250,OOO.OO per year, Def’endant T,arcw was ordcred lo: 
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a. Pay $8,500 per month in support; 

b. Pay tlic mortgagc and tiotiic equily line of credit on tlic family Iicmic; 

c. Pay “33.33% of all year. ctid profit distributions” hc receives from his h n  

Goedcckc. I ,nrcw & (“0. on an ongoing basis; 

(1. Pay “33.33% of 311 distributions froin all his limited liabilily companies” on an 

ongoing hasis; 

e. Pay “‘33.33% of all “ New York  State Ql-XI-{” tau rcfund income on an ongoing 

basis. 

I<ebecca was aw:irdcci the marital home which, whilc having a marltel value of‘ 

$ I .2M, carried $C,OO,OOO.OO cicbt. 

f. 

43. Delkndanl I,arew, with assistance ol‘ tlic othcr l)cfcndants, particularly 

Delendants Fiorito and Funiciello, immedialely sprang into action to suhvcrt tlic order of Judge 

A bery- Wetstonc. 

44. tirst, on Novcriihcr 28, 2005, Del‘endanl Larew “solci” his intcrcst i n  “C.iocdcckc, 

T,arcw RL C‘onipmy’’, a commcrcial mortgage broker concern, to his partner Pctcr (I;ocdcckc. 

I k ~ ~ i t  t o  the arrangcmcnt, 1)cfcndarit 1 x c w ,  niime purtner and fi)uncier, becamc a “contract 

eniployee”. ‘ I l k  was i n  Ilicl a sham transaction, and was clcarly intended to deli-aud the 

PI ai 11 ti f 1: 

45. On or about July 3 0 ,  2000, Tkl‘endant I muw married Ikfcndant Wojcik. 

Herelolbre, Del‘endant Wojcik had, upon itiforinntion and beliel; made ;I modest living in 

adtxiirijstrativc-type positions. but otherwise had no sigtiificnnt linancial wherewithal nor any 

particirlar skills in linance or complex real estatc dcals. 

40. In liirtherancc. of tlic schctiic, on or about September 27, 2000, 13efendant I,nrcw 
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crealed, or  had crcatcd, Th3'cndarit ('NY. Dcfcndanl C'NY is pivotal to tlic scheme ;is i l  is 

thereafter the cenlral business entity tlirougli wliicli 1)cfciidant h e w  perpetrated, and continucs 

to perpetrate, the fraudulent sclic~iic. I Ipon infi)rmalioii and beliel; Defendant I ,arcw uses C'N Y 

as a depository fbr  his personal asset\, and scrvcx as his alter ego. Fur-ther, Lkkndant Litrew has 

corririiiriglcd his pcrsonal funds with lhose 01 Defenduril C'NY + 

47. C'NY serves as a repository ol' uwnership positions in  at least fivc other entitics 

also sued licrcin (1)cfcndants Armory Parking, Vinegar Hill, Fii1t+risoti, Atrium, Quccns 

Associales and Erie Buulevard, respectivcl y). 

48. I n  fiirllierance 01' the scheme, Def'endiinl Larew pnid himself', i n  a sliani "sale", n 

total of $60,000.00 for his 50% iIileresl in Goedecke Larew. 'I'radition:illy, arid for the prior three 

(3)  years, (iocclcckc I wcw tcridercd profit distributions in Janirary. Had Dekndant Larew 

rciiiairicd a partricr iri Goedecke Larew [or thirty (30) days, he would have received ovcr 

$00,000.00 I'rom Goedeche Larew profils, :uid hc would have officially rctaincd his owncrship 

interest. Instcad, solely in f'~~rtherance 01' the scheme, and in an attempt to avoid paying tlic 

I'laintiff'as ordcrcd by thc ('ourt, lie intentionally "dissipatcd" this income on paper. I t  should be 

notcd that it is thc Plaintif'fs contention [hat h i s  money was not dissipatcd i n  fact, only on paper. 

40. I n  J i i ~ i ~ i ~ y  2007. ;i 25%) interest in thc Oswcgo Facility wij\ transf'erred, 

supposedly for  no compensation, froiii "Ked Donlire LLC"' to "Centrtll New York Associates 

I,I,c"'. 

50.  On Deceniher 20, 2007, I )ef'cndant I m-cw rcccived $0 1,050.00 h m  Del'endanl 

Ciocdccltc, and/or  "Ciocclcckc I new'. ,  rbr no rctiwn than in fiirtherancc or the scheme to dcfraud. 

011 December I ,  2005 Def'endanl 1,arew "solcl" h is  iritcrcqt in 13cfendant Harrison 

lo Def'endanl Fiorilo and I)cf'cndant t3unicicllo for $155,000.00. Such sale was a sham. 

S 1 .  
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Defendant Lncw 113s falsely rcprcscntcd ilia[ whcn be sold l i i b  sliiirc of I larrison, h e  Harrison 

Huilciing was ‘3 brokcii down, slicll of‘ ;i building” i iml  that lie “sold” his interest f‘or 

“$1 55,000.00” The property was i n  fact a valuable income producing propcrty. ‘I’liis was another 

fiaudulent transaction, and shows that lhe “sale” of li if  intcrcct was a shani lo histrate the order 

of Judge Abcry-Weistone. The $1 55,000.00 W ~ S  in actuality a distribution to Defendant Larew, 

paid wit11 cash oil liand, from 1)cfcndant liarrison. Traditionally, 1t)r tlic prcvious (4) years, all 

cash 011 hand at ycar-cnd was distributed to the parliiers as profit. Had Delendant I a e w  waited 

thirty (30) days to rcceivc his ycar-end profit distrihulion, he would have received approxiiiiately 

$ I30,000.00 and retained ownership in the property. 

52. I lad 1)cfcndant 1,arcw bccn the owtier of record oti 1)cccmbcr 3 1, 2005, he would 

liavc also rcccivcd tlic ()l</,l< Fcdcral tax refund hcnctlt of approximatcly $10,000.UI). 

I Iicrcforc, if 1)cfcndant 1 .arcw lid waited 30 days, lie would liavc rcccivcd an identical profit 

distribution ( $ I  55,000) ,  and retained owncrsliip. I his i \  further cvidciicc ofthc transaction being 

a sham and clearly incant to dissipate his assets on paper to dctiy thctii to the Plaititiff. 

57.  Ycar-end prot’it in tlic amount of $100,000.00 was distributed to the (2) remaining 

pat-tncrs on or ahout 1)cccmbcr 2005. C‘oiticidcntally, iict operaling income was $405,000.00 [or 

Dcfertdnnt 1 larrison in 3005, exactly 3 times the $155,000 that was given to 1)cfknclant 1 x c w .  

54. 0 1 1  o r  about .lanuary 1 0, 2006, .Iudgc Abcry- Wetstone issued another decision in 

the divorce procccding i n  ail effort lo  cliiri ti certain qiiestions raised hy bolh the l’laintiff and 

M ‘ c d a n t  1,arew. 

5 5 .  August 2000, r)efkiidant 1,arew filed a motion to rcducc support paymcnts to the 

Plaintiff. 1)cfcnclant ILarew claiiiied in court during testimony iinder oath that he was povcrty 

stricken, and that ltornclessness was imminent. 1 he .Judge lowered support to $S,SOO. Again, 
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ricitlicr the Plaintiil'nur tlic Judge wcrc fiilly aware o C  tllc I)cf'endarlts' ne1:drjous activities at the 

time. 

56. On August 24, 2006, Lkfkildant Larcw subiiiilled ;1 bank cllcch to Dcfcndanl 

Fiorito for $37,500.00 itw h i s  share to purchiise Ariiiory Ciarage. 1 he Cllcck was drawn against a 

Webstcr Hank chccking account and constituted Dcfcndant Larcw's conlribution. Note that this 

was only i t  niattcr oldays after Defkdant  Larew rcpresentcd i n  C'ourt that IIC was destitute. 

57. On or about Septemlicr 1 ,  2006, again only ;I matter of' clay\ after teslifyitig uiider 

oath that Dcfcndant Larew l i d  no money or income, I)cfcndanl Wujcik (1)elkndant 1,arew's new 

w i k )  closed on a houst: in Westport, C'oiinccticut. I'hc house was locatcd at 25 1:airficld Ave. in 

Westport, and the sale price was $1,707,000. The liousc was purchased wi t l i  ;I $300,000 down 

paymcnt. L J p n  information i l t l d  hclicf, Ikf'enclaiit Wo.jcih hntl IN> pcrsontil whcrcwiIlia1 lo makc 

such a purchase, i ~ i l d  f~rtids for the clown p:iyment ci1lllc, in actualily, from I.)efkndant I mew. As 

such, lhe riinds uscd in the purchnw are generntctl by h e  Rico scliciiic. 

5 8 .  Additionally, i t  should be noted that I )ci'cndant Larew has been charged hy the 

Connccticut Departniciit of C'oiisumer Protection wilh li*iitld i n  connection with tlic 25 Fairlield 

Avc. property purchase. I his was beciIu\c in April ol' 2006, in 311 cil:jrl to gcticratc commissions 

for tiiiiiselll lic f i lsc ly represeritcd to tlic sellcr's agent that he was a duly licensed real cstattc 

hrokcr rcprcsenting h i s  "fiancde'". while in  fact his hrobers licciisc w i h  h e  Stntc of C'onnecticut 

11x1 expired in 2005, ancl no ef'hrt had been mxlc to rcinstate it. In rirrthcrance 01- thc fraud, 

Defendant 1,arew hnowirigly ~ i s e d  the real cstatc brober's idcntificalion iiiiinbcr belonging to 

someone clsc. I Iic C'onnecticirt J)cpar-tment of C'onsumcr I'rotection sciit notice to lhis effect in  a 

C'cmplainl dated Ju~ic S ,  2007 lo  thc Plainlill: This is further cvidence o f  fraud conimitled by 

1)el'endant I ,:ircw in iiirtliernncc of the schernc to dcfraud the Plaintil'f: 
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SO. On Jatiiiarq 1 , 2007, 1)efcndant Finri to, in  liirlhcraticc 01. the h i d u l e n t  scheme, 

transfers his interest in  Atrium, I iai-rison. Real Bonfire, Vinegar Hi l l ,  W:irr.cn Parhing, (et al.) to 

1)efcndmt C'etitrd New Yorlc Associates. 1)efcndmt Wojcik lijtcr tuslified in Court proceedings 

related io  thc divorce that no conxidcration was paid (or Iicr inlcrest in these entities. Upon 

iiilorniation and belicf, these cniities gcnerate annual income, i~icl~iding tax refitnds, in excess of 

$ 1  .500,000. In actuality, rMkl~dant 1:iorito did not givc away anything -- Hc was holding it ibr 

Dcfenclant I ,;~rcw. 

60. On (31 about August 17, 2007, its l'raudulcnl piirpose scrvcd, Real Hoiifirc, 1,LC' is 

dissolved with the Ncw Yorh Secretary 01' Slatc. 

61. Airgmt 0 ,  2007. Mentbcrs purchased 140 I Eric Bo~ilcvard East in  Syracuse for 

$2,5c)0,000. L)efendiints F iorito, Funiciello nntl C'NY arc cacli I /3 partnurs, rcspectively. 

Ilefcndant F'iorito signed lhe opcriititig agreetnenl for rkl'endanl C'NY. Dclkiidaiit I arew is the 

pcrsonal guarantor for  the piii.chase, evidencing his actual coniinucd activity as a iiill partner 

despite the "dissipation" of wealth on paper. 

02. 

$740,000 in 2007. 

63. 

1Upon inforination and bclicl: Dcl'eiidant C'NY carlied prolits in exccss of 

In .1anii:iry 3008. t)citiid:mt 1,arew f i l d  a 2005 aiiicndcd federal tax rcturti 

showing iin additional $146,520.00 of income which he Iiad IBiled to rcpvrt on his 2005 rctiirii 

(atid which he had hilcd to report to tho C'OLII-~) .  By C'ourl ordcr, [kfendant 1 u c w  was requircd 

to provicic tax returns io the PlaintiiY within 48 hours ol' filing. 1 tiis is tiirthcr cvidence ol' the 

repeated shcll ganie played by Ikfcndant 1 ~ r c w  with hiding inconie, this timc wilh the lielp of 

eithcr/or/boih Dclkndatits Sliantwi and Dechnian. 

64. I n  April 7008, thc Larew Group psrincrs with r lch-dant Soundvicw Rcal Estatc 
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Partners I , I  ,V (Nick Ncwnian, Prcsichit; 13cn Marcus, manager), to purchase a dehulted note on 

a ’-floor ofticc building Iocatcd at 65-35 Qucciis Houlevard, Qucciis N Y  1i)r $3,000,000. In or 

about June 2008, Dci‘ciidant I a rcw rcccivcd a $1 00,000 commission on this transaction. 

65. Whi I C  I Icfcndant Soundvicw considcrs rlcl‘cndanl 1 .arcw to be a principal in Ihe 

05-35 QLieeIis Bo~ilevard deal, they 110 not oblige 11ir-u to cxccute any financial documents for tho 

deal on his own behall‘ -- again in fiir-therance of. the scheme lo deli-aud. 

66. In or ; h i i t  May 2008, Defendants Larcw, Fiorito and Funiccllo coinminglc the 

assets oi‘ Dei‘endants Atrium, I3oulcvnr-d and C’NY, in the amoiint oi‘ $300,000, which they 

euphemis~ically callcd a loan. ‘I’licsc fiiiidi were niostly diverted to llei‘endant l,arcw, through 

Ikfcndant CN Y, and J~cfkndanls Fiorito and Fiinicello rcccivcd $30,000 each for their part. 

67. Also, in or  about May X O X ,  1)cfcndant Wojcik receivcs over Y; I60,OOO as a 

qiiartcrly distribution from 1)cfcndniit C’NY. This distribution is in reality a distribution to 

I)cfcndaiit I mew. 

6X. On July 7 ,  3008 Del‘endant Ilcckman, thc accoirntant h r  Iklkndi int  hew, writcs 

to the IRY ashing fbr an abatunicnt o f  peualty ibr  iiiiling to dcclarc $146,520 in 2005 income. 

Deleidant Il)cclcman states that thc error was ~ h c  I’laintiff’s fimlt, apparently because lit. Forget lic 

made an additional $146,530. ‘I’his late reporting wa:, clcarly ;I disingenuous attempt to avoid 

revealing Dekndant 1,arcw’s truc carnings ii-om the C’onnccticut C’ourt in ;iii earlicr divorcc 

proceeding. lkfcndant I ,arew’s 2005 Federal tau return W;IS li-audiilent, and constitutcd inail 

fraud in its submissiori to the I iS  Govcrniiicnt, at id  when i t  was sLihiiiittcd to the C‘oiiiiecticut 

court in the divorcc action. It was also ;I h i i d  iipo~i thc PlaiiitilT. ‘I’his f2aud was committed by 

Del‘endanls Larcw, as wcll as Llechman and/or Shannon. 

6‘1. In or nboiit August 2008, tlic I ,arew Group, and 1)cfcndant I~rittoiilield, closes on 
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;1 building identified a x  5000 HrittnntTcld Parhway. Dcwitt, NY, lbr $7,500,000. 1)ekndants 

I ,arcw. Funiccllo, t iorito and Sangster arc principals in Defendant Hritloniield, and execute a 

guaranly to First Niagara Funding, Inc. to fi tiatice the dcal. IUtidcr this gimantce they promise, 

in/pi- cx/ i ir ,  that First Niagara Funding, Inc. will he cntitlcd to rcccivc rcnls generated by lhe 

building, as collatcral. In furthcrmcc of the li.aitdiilent scheme. tlic Defendants use this same 

collateral a s  Icvcragc in futurc dcalh. 

70. In o r  : h u t  1)cccunber 2008, k l ' endan t  I mew, on bchalT ol' Delendant 1,arew 

Ihylc,  offcrs $2,000,000 to purchnsc tlic mortgage on ;I hotcl resort propcrty (C'ortina Inn and 

Resort) in Killinglon, V I . While the Pliiintiil. docs tint vicw this o l k r  in and of itself ab 

liaiidLilent, thc fact that the Plaintifl' has tlic whcrcwithal to oi'f'cr $3,000,000 at that time is 

evidcncc of the fratid on [lie coiir-t atid thc Plaintill' in tlie iiiisrcprcsentations regarding 1)cfcndant 

Larew's financial whcrewi thal. It also rcvcals tlini Del'endant I x c w  wi1s very much in charge of 

ttic husincss o f  Def'endant 1,arcw 13oylt., and lhat 1)cfcndant Doyle had knowledge of, and was 

cotiiplicit in, [lie iiaudulcnt sclienie. 

71. I n  o r  bcforc January 2000, T)cfctidant Larew rcproscnts, tinder oath, in litigation 

involving I3cfcndml Queens Associates (05 -75  (.)uucris Associates,. I ,!-,C', v. 05-35 oygsm 

Boulevard, LIL' et gl., Index No.  8463/08, Supreme <)uccr~s), thal lie is tlic manager of 

T>eL'endant Queens Associates. 

72. I n  or  about Janiiary 2009, pursrraat to an :ifficlnvit dated January 30, 2000, 

Defendant 1,arcw rcpreserits i;Cilscly iii tlie divorcc proccediiig that lic hac negative incoinc, 

piqm-tedly losing in C Y C ~ S S  of $900.00 per rnonlli. 1 lie rcpresentaiions thcrci ti arc iintrue, a i d  a 

h u d  upon the court and tlie I-'laintiff. This d s o  constitutes mail fraud as cuch allidavit is 

submittcd to the C'onnecticut court b y  use oi' ttic innils. 
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73. Dcspitc thc rcprcscntation h i t  hc has 110 money, Defendant I m e w  has, in fact, 

signiticanl cash available in Jaiiirasy 2009, including 311 extra $20,000 to cover expenscs of 

r)ei'eIlda~lt Larew rhylc.  It reveals again that 1)cfcndant Larew was very much in  charge of tlic 

husincss of Dei'eiidant Larew Doyle, and tliat Deli-ndant 13oylc had knowledge of; and was 

compl icit in, tlic fraudulent scheme. 

74. 1)cfcndant Wojcik was dcposed in connection with the divorce proceedings on or 

abou February 4, 2000. She also testi l id in court i n  coniicctioti with the divorce procccdings on 

July 3, 2000. Her testimony was that: 

a. SIIC was ')c)'Yh O W I I C ~  of 1)cfctldatit ('NY; 

b. C'NY acquired a 1/3 interest in I ) ehdan t  A t r i m  [or ~ e r u  clollars; 

c. C'NY had acquircd a 1 /3 iiilcrcst in Deli.ndant Harrison h r  Lero clollars; 

d. CNY had \imilar-ly acquired interests in llcfcndants (Succns Associates, 

Hritton flcld, AI-IIIC)I-Y Parking, Vinegar Hill and b,ric Houlcvard. 

75. As of .luly 13, 3_OOcl, 1)cfcndant Wo.jcih purportedly owned 99% of r)cfcndant 

C'NY. According to licr tcstiriioiiy in C'oiirt. Del'endant Wojcib ticvcr paid aiiytliiiig for strch 

interest irnd has iiever pt'rsoiially cnrncd, inlicritcd or  otherwise liiid iirnds to piirchase 99%) of 

such a valuable cntcrprisc. I n  furthcrance of the i~audulent schcmc, she is clearly taskccl with 

holding Dei'endanl I ~ r e w ' s  assets to cvztdc the CIoiirt's order. 

70. 1)cfcndant Wojcik acquired her iritercst in C'NY for iio tiioncy -- or itidccd any 

valuable reniuneration whalsoevcr. 12athcr, tlic ownership interest of Derendant 1,arew was 

translkrred to Dei'endant Wojcik i ti furthcrancc of the l i .addent scheme. 

77. Anotlicr bu4ricss associate of 1)cl'tiidant l,arcw, Mr. fkti MarctrF, was deposed in 

conricction with the divorce proceedings on April 7, 2000. He d s o  testilied in court in  
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conneclion with the same on July 13, 2009. On hoth instances l ie idciitified DeTendnnt Larcw as 

hj, business par-tner, testified t h a t  tlic Plaintiff was in control u l  1)elkndant (Succns Associates 

documcnts, and that Delendant I , xcw had mainlained a 25% iritcrcct i ti 13cfendant Q~ieens 

Associates, as cviclcnccd by corporation clocuxncnts, corrcspondcnces and direct first hand 

knowledge. As such, Jkfcndant I ,mew is clearly an eqiiity liolclcr arid principal decision maker 

in Del‘endant Quccns Associates. 

78. Further, it is at this timc, and particularly through Mr. Marcus’ testimony, thal the 

cxtcnt of thc Def‘endants’ nel‘arious activities begins to coiiic to light, when i t  is revealed tlint 

1)cfcndant 1,arcw“s modus operandi is to have his control uf the hucincsw, transactions atid 

nianagenicrit dcscrilicd Iicrcin, and income gciicr:itcd thcrchy, reflected ;is “indirect” in all 

document\ and thilt his ‘.individual iiitcrcst” i n  all busincw is licld hy I3cfcndant C’NY, which lie 

ref‘ers to as  ;I ‘‘trust like entity.” Tlierehre, i t  is only after July 2000 that the details of tlic 

fraudulent schcmc truly begin to cmcrgc to the T-’laintif‘f. 

79. Delkndant CNY is not 21 Irust, and Iliere has txen i i o  valid legally enlimxable 

docunierit created which set\ up a trust for I)cl’crid:ant I m e w ’ s  asccts, income o r  interests. 

81). Defendant L x e w  used C‘NY as his personal holding company, o r  illegal ‘Yrust” to 

hide his assets l?om the coiirt. This IYaud renders every business transaction i n  which MI-. Larew 

and his altcr ego I)efcndant C‘NY a h u d .  

8 I . As 01‘ July 2009, C‘NY had acqiiired ;I one-third ( 1 /3) interest in 1)ekndant Atrium 

for 110 rcinuncration. 12athcr, the ownership interest of 1)cfcndant I m e w  in 13cfcridant Atrium 

was transl’erred to C‘NY in Iurtherancc 01. llie schemc. 

82. A \  of July 2009, C‘NY liad ncyuircd a om-tliird (1/3) iritcrcst in Defendant 

I larrison fb r  no apparent rcmuncr:ition. 1 his is fitr-thcr cvidcncc of the fi.audulcnt schcmc. 
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83. As 01' July 2000, C'NY had acquired ititcrcsts i n  the fi)llowing entities without any 

apparent rcniuncration, but rather in liirtheraiicc of the fraudulent scheme: Defendant Quccns 

Associates; Dcfciidant Brittonlield, Defktidant Armory Parking, 1)efiiidanl Vinegar Hill and 

Delkndant 13rj c I3oulcvard. 

84. IIekndants Dccknian and Shannon. accountants l'or the various iiidividual aiid 

corporate Defendants, prcparcd -- or facilitated the presentation of -- falsc accounting and 

income inforniatioti for use to mislead the Court and taxing authorities, witnrc account 

statements arid fiaudulcnt t u  lilings to  mislead the ('ourt and taxing authorities, and gsvc Fdse 

tcstitnony in court regarding 1)cfcndant I .arcw's assets, income, and earnings -- 3s well as the 

assets, income, and earnings of' the various corporate Delindants. 

85 .  I ti o r  about 2008, 1)ct'cndant Sliannoti, in/er ~rlitr, prcparcd 2007 I;cdcral tax 

relurns lor Delkndant Atrium. He knowingly aided the fiaudulcnt schcmc in that the tax return he 

prepared altribuled 1/3 of'L)ef'endanL Atrium's incotiic to 1)cfcndant C'NY when such income was 

in fact iiicoinc to Defendant Larew. This is a li-aud commilted by LISC ol'tlie mails, a fraud on the 

I JS Government, and ii liaud on the I'laintiff. 

STATE M 14; N 'I' 0 F C: I ,  A I M 8 

COUNT ONE 
CIVIL I Z I C 1 0  

86. 'I'hc I)cfcndants havc violated 18 I J.S.C. 1062. 

87. I'hc I)ct'cndants have committed actions which constitute one o r  tiiorc of the 

following violations: (a) using or investirig income received from a pattern of racketeering 

ncti vity to ncqriirc ;ai interest in any enterprise that is engaged in, or affects, i titerstate conmiei+ce; 

(13) acquiring or maintaining through ;I pattern ol' racketeering activity any intcrcst in  an 

cntcrprisc that is cngagcd in, or allects, interstiite commerce; (c)  conducting o r  participating in 

17 
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tlic conduct, tliroiigli n pattcrii of' rachetecring activity, ol' an clitcrprise that is cngagcd in, 01' 

affects, iriterstatc coiii~iierce; xid ((1) conspiring to violate hcctions (a). (h), and (c) of this 

section. 

88. In violation of 18 I.J.S.C'. 3 1902(;1), the Dcfcndanls (except for Ilefendanls 

I)cclcmaii a i d  Shannon) received incoiiic from ;i pattern of' rackctccring activities and iiivested 

part of tliat income in activitics which engiige in, or affect, interstate ccom111crcc, as detailed 

above. 

89. I n  violation of '  18 lJ+S.C. 5 IC)h2(a), Ihe Iklkndants (except fi)r Del'endants 

I)ccltman and Shannon) acquired an interest in a KICK) cntcrprise through the cstahlishiiicnt of: 

purchase and h a l e  of, and or operation 01; various limited liability compmies :as dctailcd above. 

The acts of thc aforesaid L>efendants in violating the provisions of 18 1J-S.C'. 90. 

1962(a), a s  allcged herein, itre the Ihctual and thc proximak C~ILISC: of the injury to licbecca 

Larcw. 

91. In violation of 18 I J.S.C". 5 1 Oh2( b), the Del'endants (except for 1)cfcndants 

Deckiiiaii and Shannon) have acquired and/or imintnincd, through 3 paltern of racketeering 

activity, iiitcrcsts i n  tlic various enterprises detailed above, all of'which arc cngaged in, or  afl'ect, 

iiiterstatc co m m c  rce. 

02. 'I'hat in violation of' 18 1J.S.C'. $ 1902(c), the above riariicd I)cfcndiinls conducled 

cor participated directly o r  indirectly, in the coiiduct oftlic C'ivil l i l C ' 0  enterprise's d h i r s  tl~r~oilgll 

a pattern of rackctccring activity h y  engaging in the scheine as detailed rtbovc. 

93. In violation of 18 U.S.C. 5 IC>62(d), dl 13cf'cndanls, including Del'endants 

Dccktnan and S11a1111011, as is detailed above, conyh+ed to violate 18 I1.S.C'. $ I962 (a),  (b), u i d  

( c ) .  
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04. ‘Ilic Def‘endants haw collectively committcd two or  iiiort: acts which satisfi the 

C‘ivil RTC‘O statutory requircnicut for predicate acts. 

95. The Del‘endantx actb, including tliose acts which constitutc prcdicate acts, togcther 

constituted it pattcrn wliereby the monetary and linancial iiitcrests 01. Ikl‘endant I x e w  wcrc 

Iiiddcii, converted, iiiisidcritiGed/deceptivcly identified o r  hcld b y  ;I “s~raw inan”. 

90. Such pattern is a pattern 01‘ rackctccring activity by virtue of the fact that il1eg:al 

acts were used to achieve the intended resull, as dctailed above. 

97. The 1)cfcndants directly or iiidirectly invcsted in, o r  iiiaiiitairied an intcrcst in, or 

parlicipatcd in the enterprise, as dotailcd above. 

98. l’hc activitics of the entcrprise all‘ect ititcrslale coiiiruerce. The activities of the 

cnterprise has a n  affkct interstate cotiimcrce because, i~w diu: 

; I .  ‘I’he Defendants have iiti1iLed Iciiding from Federal prngranis i n  

furtherance of’the enterpri5e; 

h . The I)efendants have utili7cd Fedcral tax inccntive programs in 

liirtherancc of the cntcrprise; 

I’hc Deliidants are locatcd in ~iiorc than one Statc; 

‘l’lie 1)e~ciidants havt: usccl the mails in liirthct~aiice of‘tlie schcme; 

Thc I)cleiidants have used tlic internct md telephonc in fitrtheratice of. the 

schcme; 

The 1)cfendants have liled false Federal tax returns in liirthcrance 01‘ tlic 

schcme; 

At least otic Def‘endant has crosscd Statc borders in fLirtherancc o f  the 

en t e 1.1-1 rise, and : 

c. 

d. 

e. 

E 

g. 
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11. Moiiics liavc crossccl Statc bordcrs in fui-thermce oi‘ (he enterprise. 

‘ 1 ’ 1 ~  acts of the aforcsaid 1)cfcndanls in violating the provisions of 18 1U.S.c‘. 5 

I9h2, as  allcgcd herein, was and is the hctual and the pi*oxiniiitc caiisc of the injury to Itcbccca 

Lnrcw. 

00. 

100. Such interests in tlic cnterprisc, acquired and maintained by tlic Dcfcndants as 

detailed abovc, liiivc hccii thc proxiinatc cmsc of tlic liarti1 to the I’IaiiitiiI and has alsu harmed 

hcr three children. 

101. ‘llie acts constituting the pattcrii of rackcteering linvc occurred ovcr a substantial 

m o u n t  of time, and constitute ii continued tlireat of violative activity. 

102. By virtue oi‘ the ibregoing, and a s  alleged with particularity above, the Plaintiff is 

entitled to money damages, including treble damages and an award of attoriicys fccs, total iiig i ti 

cxccss of $ I2,000,000. 

COIJNT TWO 
F K A I I I)  

103. Lki‘rndant l m c w  cmbarkcd oii a frauclulciit conspiracy with the other named 

I)cfcndants commciicing shortly alier his clivorce was iiiializcd in 2005 aiid continuing to the 

date hercol‘ to dcprivc thc Plaintiff of the berielits to which she is :iid was cntitlcd hy virtue of 

said ecoiioiiiic provisions of the afiwcsaid Judgment ol‘ Divurce, the aforesaid stipulation, a id  the 

aforesaid C’lcrk’s .ludgi~iciit\ and other Orders issued hy the C’onnccticut District C’ourt, as herein 

sct forth abovc. 

104. The conduct of cadi of thc I )cfcndants as alleged herein was and is thc fixtual 

and proximate cause ofthc injury to tlic PlaititifC 

1 OS. By virtue of‘ tlic forcgoing. tlic Plaintiff llils been damagcd. and is entitled to 

CompeIisatory, I’unitivc and I Ixcmplary damages against each named 1)cfciidant i ti cxccss of 
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$4,000,0 00. 

C'OlJNT THREE 
C'ONVl<KSlON 

I Oh. Ikfendanl Larcw, aidcd and abelted by thc otlicr Individiial Named Ilcfcndants, 

converted p r ~ p c ~ - t y  that the Plainti11' had a vcstcd interesi in that defendants caused Defendant 

Larcw's intcrcst in the ali)rcsaid limited liabilily coiiipwiics to be hmsf'errcd over away lirom 

hin i  on paper, whilc 1)cfcnclant Larew rcmainctl in conlrol dc / w / o  of these liiiiitcd liability 

companics in violation of' licbccclri Larew's rights wider the Divorcc .Iudginent, and rcccived 

rcmuncratiori U'P f u t o  from these compaiiics. 

1 07. ' I  lie condiict of 1)cfcndanl Larew, and the Iridiviclual Naiiicd I)el'endants, was and 

is the factual prouimatc cause of'thc iiijury to the J'laiiitiff. 

108. Hy rcasoii of tlic foregoing, tlic Plaintifl' has been damaged in excess of' 

$4 ,( )OO ,I) 00 . 

C'OIJNT FOUR 
VIO1,ATION O F  THE NEW YORK S'I'ATE DERTOK 
ANI) C'KEDITOII LAW, 273,273-a, 275,276 and 276(a) 

109. I'hc transf'crs, actions and condwt of' 1)cfcndant L;ircw, together with the other 

namcd Del'endants hcrcin, wcrc mcL are in violation of' lhe New Yorb S tatc I)cbtor u i d  C'rcditor 

I AW, $ 5  273, 273-n, 275 a11d 276. 

1 I O .  The transfers, actions arid conduct of 1)clkndant I mcw, together with the otlicr 

iimicd individual I)cfcndanls snci C'ompiiny l)cfcndants, ;IS al Icgcd and detai Icd herein, was with 

the actuijl inlent to hinder, delay atid clefra~id thc Plijilliill'x a creditor of' 1)cfcndant Larew. 

I 1 1 .  ' I I c  conduct of cach of. thcsc dcftendants as alleged hcrcin wa\ and is tlic IBclual 

and proximate cause of'thc injury to thc Plaintill: 

I 12. L3y virtue of the fi)rcgoiiig the Plaintiff i s  entitlcd to attorney's fccs pursuaiit to 
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Debtor Creditor Law Section 270(a). 

I I 3. Hy virtue of‘ the foregoing the Plaintill‘lias been damaged in exccsr of $4,000,000. 

1 14. The Del‘endanls by their wrongrd acts albrementiuned, inflicted ecoiioiiiic 

distress ijlld loss i i p c ) n  the Pliiintill: and siicl i acts constitute a primii I’acie tort. 

1 15. The 1)elndants by their acts ahresaid inlenlionally inflicted harm to the Plaintiff‘ 

by preventing her li-om collecting the monies due to  her which she was entitled as  a result of said 

cconoinic provisions of the albresaid November 8, 2005 r)ivoI.cc Ilccrcc, the aforesaid 2004 

stipulation, the C‘lcrk’s Jirdgnients arid ollier Orders issued hy tlic C‘onnccticut Ilistrict Court, 01‘ 

which the New York Shtc  Supi.cmc (‘ourt slioiild give lirll h i l h  and credit. 

116 .  I he series of acts of cacti ui’ the Delendants, cithcr as allcgcci hcrcin, or which 

which may linvc becn otherwise Iawfiil, wcrc clone witlioiil any exc~ist‘ o r  justification and wcrc 

solcly iiiotivntccl by “disinterested malcvolciicc.” 

1 17. Hy virtuc o f  the hregoing:, tlic Plaintiff alleges that the acts of‘ cacli of tlic 

defendants, as detailed herein, was and is tlic factuiil and proximate c;iusc of her injury, in that 

the PlainlifI‘ was forced to pay fees to coiinsel and otlicr fccs to protect her rights, and has 

cxpcnclcci to date atid is otherwise ohligated t o  datc in the siiin of‘ approxim:itcly $575,000; and 

has incurred a loss of assets, including liability for t a w  and interesl in cxccss of $1,600,000; 

and Plaintiff reasonably anticipates h a t  such special dalliiiges shall continue to he incurred until 

t hc co nc I us i o 11 hereo 1: 

11 8. By vir-tuc of the foregoing, the l’laintiff is ciititletl to punitive and bxcniplary 

Diinlages against e ~ h  11aiiicd I k f ~ ~ i d a ~ ~ t  in the s;um of $2,SOO,OOO.OO 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 
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WI I I.KEFOKE, the i'lainlill'claims damages in cxccss of $ I4,500,000.00, conipriscd of 

the following: 

A. Money damages; 

13. c o s t s ;  

c'. Punitive damagcs; 

E. Attorneys rees; 

F. Expert witness lies; 

H. Such other re l idas  the Cour*t dceimcjwt ,  fair and cquitablc. 

Plaintiff hcrchy cicmands a trid by jury on all claims so triable 

Dated: .Iuly 5 ,  201 I 

PREETH & CLAY, LLP 
Giiipi re State I3 LI i Id ing 
350 Fiflh Ave. 
Suile 77 10 

V E KI IT I C: A T  I ( 1 N 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
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) ss.: 
COUNTY OF NEW YORK) 

‘I’he undersigiicd, Rebecca T,arew. shows: 

Deponent, Rchccca Larew, has read thc foregoing miplaint  dated July 5 ,  20 1, and 

slates thattt, to cleponcnt’s hnowlcdge, the same is truc cxcepl ;IS 10 matters herein slated as to be 

alleged upon infonnalion and bclie1.; as to thost: mattcis, deponent bclieves thcm to be true. 

‘I he undersigiicd af’lirins that [he forcgoiiig statcnicnls are trac, under tlic pcnalties of 

perjury . 

1)aled: New York, Ncw Yorh 
July 7, 201 1 

Swonitp befbre mc 
July .c, 201 0 

Notary Public 

Kcl;ccca Larcw 
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